
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Sanford Historic Preservation Commission 

West End Conference Room 
7:00 PM Monday, August 15, 2016 

Sanford Municipal Building 
 

Roll Call: 
 
Commissioners Present: David Nestor, Brian Mitchell, Philip Yarborough, Allen Gordon, Greg Stoch and 
    Jenks Youngblood 
 
Commissioners Absent:     Tracy Hughes 
 
Staff Present: Liz Whitmore, Anne Sears, Secretary to the Board, Al Benshoff, The Brough Law 

Firm, PLLC. 
 
Government Official Present: City Councilman, Sam Gaskins 
    
     
Chair Nestor called the meeting to order.   
 

1. Staff Anne Sears called the roll and a quorum was determined. 
   

2. Approval of the Agenda for August 15, 2016: Chair Nestor called for approval of the agenda for August 15, 
2016.  Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve the agenda as amended; seconded by Commissioner 
Yarborough and the motion passed unanimously.  
 

3. Approval of the July18, 2016 Minutes: 
Chair Nestor called for the approval of the minutes for July 18, 2016.  Commissioner Mitchell moved to 
approve the minutes for the July 18, 2016; seconded by Commissioner Gordon and the motion passed 
unanimously. 

4. Public Comment: 
Chair Nestor asked if there was any public comment.  There was none. 

       5.    Old Business: 

a.  ACTION NEEDS TO BE TAKEN ON THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENT THAT WAS DISCUSSED 
AT THE FEBRUARY 2, 2016 MEETING:  Staff Whitmore stated in February, there was a discussion about 
the trees that were planted in downtown were interfering with some of the awnings. The board had mentioned 
several times about amending the downtown guidelines to say that “Awnings in the Downtown District shall 
not extend more than five (5) feet from the building façade, as long as there is no interference with the trees.” 
Staff Whitmore said if there is a tree there and if you are going to replace the awning and it is going to interfere 
with the tree, then we can say the awning needs to be shorter; because we want to make sure the trees will 
grow.  Staff Whitmore noted if a business replaces an awning, it will be considered routine maintenance.  Staff 
Whitmore shared that there are four trees that were planted downtown that are interfering with the awnings.  
Staff Whitmore provided everyone a copy of the guidelines and she asked them to turn to page 24 and page 25.  
Staff Whitmore noted that on page 25, at the first bullet point, it talks about appropriate placement of signs and 
awnings on historic buildings.  She would like to include the language there or it could be added at the end of 
that sentence.  Commissioner Stoch said his concern is about existing awnings; that the person could be 
compelled by this language; whereas they would have to take down this awning or cut the awning.  Chair 
Nestor stated that it doesn’t currently conform to our guidelines and legally we are not in the position that we 
are going to turn around and change something that exists.  Chair Nestor asked staff where she wanted the 
statement added?  Staff Whitmore said she would like to add it on page 25 after the first bullet point and a 
motion is needed to amend this and add it to the downtown guidelines.  Commissioner Stoch moved that the 
language be added after the first bullet point that starts with the location of new signs and awnings that is 
currently at the top of page 25; seconded by commissioner Mitchell.  Attorney Al Benshoff asked the board if a 

1 
 



discussion could be held before we take a vote on it and he had a question.  He shared that City Council did not 
adopt the Rosemount-McIver guidelines into the ordinance; but they did acknowledge them or approve them in 
some fashion; but his question is does this board have the authority to amend the historic district guidelines or 
does it need to go to City Council?  Staff Whitmore stated that the board can as long as it is discussed ahead of 
time and then you take a motion at the second meeting or a meeting after that.  She shared that we have already 
amended the newly adopted Rosemount McIver guidelines without it going back before City Council.  Staff 
Whitmore added that it is only when you have a full scale rewrite when you have to take it back to City 
Council.  Staff Whitmore shared that our city attorney, Susan Patterson was present when the first amendment 
to the guidelines was done.  Chair Nestor asked attorney Benshoff if it should be checked out.  Attorney 
Benshoff said no, it won’t be a problem unless the commission is ever in a lawsuit and we have to prove where 
the guidelines came from.  Attorney Benshoff  said that he did have that discussion with Susan and she said 
that Commission approval was appropriate.  He said he is OK with it; just curious about the difference in 
approval procedures between amendments.  Staff Whitmore suggested that the Commission hold off on the 
motion and revisit it at the next meeting.  Staff Whitmore and Chair Nestor were in agreement to table the 
motion until the next meeting.  No other commissioner objected.  Commissioner Gordon moved that he would 
like to make a substitute motion; that we table the motion put forth by commissioner Stoch; seconded by 
commissioner Greg Stoch and it passed unanimously.   

b. UPDATE ON VIOLATIONS:  Staff Whitmore provided and read the list of violations to the board and 
included photographs, addresses, and whether or not staff had contacted the property owner or the occupant by 
reference were discussed.  Staff Whitmore stated she makes site visits regularly and at times she coordinates 
with planning technician Bill Morgan to go with her as needed.  Commission Gordon reiterated to staff 
Whitmore for those that are going to complain that they need to be in compliance with the ordinance.  Staff 
Whitmore relayed the importance of making sure the letter goes to the appropriate person when contact is 
made.  Commissioner Stoch shared that his neighbor has a wall of rock and he wants to get rid of it; but he 
doesn’t want to pay to get rid of it; so he wanted to know if these rocks could be used somewhere else for those 
that wanted to use railroad crossties for landscape materials; which are not allowed in the guidelines?  Staff 
Whitmore said it would be OK, but they would be require to have a COA to remove the wall.  Staff Whitmore 
added that the ones she has seen recently are in the Rosemount-McIver district and they could be relocated and 
not in their front yard.  Chair Nestor relayed that the satellite guy is supposed to get a building owner’s 
permission.  Commissioner Mitchell had a question about 318 Cross Street on page 10.  He said they just 
installed a satellite dish without a COA. Chair Nestor said that he felt like it was a rental; but staff Whitmore 
said she could find that out.  Staff Whitmore spoke about the new tenant at North Gulf and she relayed that she 
had already sent them a packet with her card asking if they needed anything.  Chair Nestor said he plans to 
bring it up again in our realtor meetings what we recommend as realtors; which would be to take the 
disclosures and listing with the homeowners and let them know it is in the historic district and there are 
guidelines associated with it and that the disclosure is there.  Staff Whitmore said she has been receiving a lot 
more calls from realtors wanting to know about the guidelines.  She said she usually emails them or walks 
them through the website and she gives them a description of the house and whether or not it is contributing or 
non-contributing.  Staff Whitmore relayed that most of the people she speaks too are in agreement to comply; 
but there are always a few that do not and she also shared that she takes the responsibility if someone calls to 
report a problem.  Commissioner Youngblood asked in real estate review is there anything legally required in a 
historic district?  Chair Nestor said they don’t really have an actual document that say there are guidelines 
attached; but it will be labeled on the deed that you are in the Rosemount-McIver historic district.  
Commissioner Youngblood asked if all of those deeds have already been changed in the Rosemount-McIver 
district?  Chair Nestor noted no; unless they are transferred and what we are trying to do is to get the realtor to 
be honest and let buyers know that they are in a historic district and here are the guidelines.  Commission 
Gordon shared that we have agents coming from Fayetteville, Raleigh, Pinehurst and they don’t know whether 
they are in the historic district or not.  Chair Nestor asked staff Whitmore to check the Fayetteville MLS.  It 
will provide her with the listings.  Chair Nestor stated he would email that information to staff Whitmore.  
Staff Whitmore stated that she would be glad to go to any real estate meetings, and give a presentation.  Chair 
Nestor suggested that staff Whitmore go to Fayetteville for one of their meetings.  Staff Whitmore also relayed 
that she doesn’t get many people to take advantage of the tax credit that is available.   

2 
 



Attorney Al Benshoff  stated that the overlay district is a kind of zoning district under the authority that 
Sanford has to have for any zoning laws, so when the realtors make the disclosures they could ideally list all of 
the zoning districts applying to a property.  A property can be in four or five different zoning districts, that are 
stacked on top of each other.  That is a lot for realtors to learn, especially for an agent that might work in five, 
six or seven different municipalities or counties.  Each one of them has a different zoning ordinances or a 
different rule, so my suggestion is when you talk to the realtors to explain that the property is zoned, for 
example in R10 and in the historic district.  Attorney Benshoff continued to say that there are no Sanford 
historic district deed restrictions and if the property is not state or federally recognized as a historic structure or 
in a federal district then it doesn’t have deed restrictive covenants.    

Commissioner Youngblood asked if historic district zoning was on the GIS and staff Whitmore noted yes and 
she shared that she receives more calls than she used to and she has some that will go out of their way to ask 
and some that don’t.  Staff Whitmore said she has received more calls from people that are buying a house in 
the Hawkins district and they want to know if they have to meet the guidelines.  At this time, staff Whitmore 
explains the different between the national district that is not locally designated.  Commissioner Gordon shared 
that he thought people were more aware than they used to be.       

c. MURAL UPDATE: Staff Whitmore shared that the wall has been prepped on the Dosssenbach building on 
Wicker and the corner of Steele Street. (Silent Wings mural).  Muralist Scott Nurkin will start on Monday, 
depending on the weather.  This mural honors three glider pilots; Lee Roy Perry, Frank Blalock, Sr., and 
Bucky Williams that lived in Sanford.  The plan for the Herb Thomas and the Fabulous Hudson Hornet is set 
for the week of September 22, 2016.  This mural will be placed on the Auto Advantage Building opposite wall 
of the Coca Cola mural on North Steele street.  Staff noted that we have funding for both of these murals.  Staff 
Whitmore stated that she has received several donations for the San-Lee Theatre mural. This funding will be 
set aside until we have all the money for this mural.  Chris De-Lambert with the Temple has agreed to help 
raise funds for this mural.  Commissioner Stoch asked about our coke signage being redone.  Staff Whitmore 
said we are not in the Charlotte Coca Cola district; that we are in the Sanford district; so technically we stand 
alone.  Staff said she has planned to contact Wayne Andrews with Coca Cola to discuss it.  Dr. Pepper has 
plans to redo their own mural.  
     
d. MURAL DEDICATION/CELEBRATION: Staff Whitmore shared that we have planned a mural dedication 
and celebration at Depot Park on October 13th, at 6:00 pm. The date was changed because of the Lee County 
Fair schedule for September 13th thru September 18th.  Staff Whitmore shared that we will be celebrating our 
World War II, Visionary Builders, Sanford Spinners and the Glider Pilot mural.  We hope to have the Herb 
Thomas and the Fabulous Hudson Hornet mural completed at this time.  Our plan is to serve peanuts, 
crackerjacks, cokes and ice-cream.  Invitations will be sent to those that have donated money towards the 
murals.  Staff Whitmore stated the plans are to open with the Star Spangled Banner and Greg Gleb and his 
band plan to play.  Staff Whitmore plans to include a slide presentation and photographs of all the murals. 
    
e.  HISTORIC PRESERVATION AWARDS: Staff Whitmore relayed that she has not had the opportunity to 
go by VLO Signs to get prices for our signage for the historic preservation awards.  Staff Whitmore said she 
plans to look them up on line to see what they look like.  Staff Whitmore added that she would like to get good 
metal signs; but it will depend on the cost.  Staff Whitmore said that they may have to go with less expensive 
ones this year, and then the plan would be to put money in the budget next year to get better ones the following 
year.  Commissioner Mitchell asked if there was any update on the electrical boxes downtown.  Staff 
Whitmore said that several options have been discussed.  They spoke about painting them; doing wraps or 
placing landscaping around them.  Nothing definite at this time.  

      6.      New Business: 

a. STAFF UPDATES:  

1.  COA’s :  Staff Whitmore provided updates on minor and major approved (COA’s) (See list included by 
reference)  

    7. Announcements:  

3 
 



Chair Nestor shared that music in the park continues.  He said he would like to see us provide some sort of 
shade for the different events being held in the park; especially during the summer months.  Commissioner 
Youngblood said someone had suggested to him about starting a butterfly habitat downtown, similar to the one 
that they have at the old Chatham Mills site in Pittsboro.  The idea is that you would plant perennials that 
attract butterflies.  Commissioner Youngblood said he liked the idea and his suggestion to the board was to 
place it on Chatham Street between the street and the railroad tracks.  Staff Whitmore said it was similar to 
what the state does with the wildflower program.  Staff Whitmore reminded everyone that the Historic 
Preservation of North Carolina is having their conference for those who would like to attend.  It is a three-day 
event, but you could attend for just a day.  The dates are September 21st, 22nd and the 23rd.  Staff Whitmore said 
she plans to attend all three days, the city pays for this and money is available for one more person to go.  Staff 
said she would keep everyone informed.                                                   

    8. Adjournment: 

Chair Nestor called for adjournment.  Commissioner Mitchell moved to adjourn; seconded by Commissioner 
Youngblood and the motion passed unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at 8:15 pm.  

Adopted this ____ day of __________ 2016 

Respectfully submitted: 
 _________________________________________ 
 Chair: David Nestor 
 

Attest: ______________________________________  
Secretary to the Board: Anne Sears 

  
 

4 
 


